
Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

July 15, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
Invocation: 

      Pastor Marvin Kasemeier, New Song Worship Center 
  

 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. July 1, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
 

2. Presentation: 
2.1. FCS Group – Utility Rate Study 

 
 

3. Consent Items: 
3.1. Contract Award – 2014 CHAP Street Overlay and Water Main Replacement, 

North Kelso Avenue 
3.2. Auditing of Accounts 

 
 

4. Citizen Business: 
 
 

5. Council Business: 
5.1. Aldercrest Property Status Update   
5.2. Longview Public Development Authority – Hotel/Sports Complex Feasibility 

Studies 
5.3. Lobbying Professional Services Agreement – Gordon Thomas Honeywell 

Governmental Affairs 
 
 
6. Action/Motion Items: 

6.1. Ordinance, 2nd  Reading 
6.1.1. Emergency Shelter, Low Barrier, and Transitional Housing Zoning Code        

Amendment (KMC 17.08, 17.15, 17.30) 



Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

July 15, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

6.2. Resolution 
6.2.1. Council Rules Amendment 

 
 
Other Items: 

• City Manager Report 
• Staff/Dept Head Reports 
• Council Reports 
• Other Business 
• Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                              July 1, 2014 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Mark Schmutz, Northlake Baptist Church, gave the invocation.  Deputy Mayor 
Dan Myers led the flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was 
called to order by Deputy Mayor Myers.  Councilmembers in attendance were: Myers, 
Archer, Schimmel, Franklin, Roberson, and McDaniel.  Councilmember Futcher was 
absent.  
 
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
Archer, ‘Approve the Minutes of the 06/17/14 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, all 
voting yes. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1. Appointment: Firemen Pension Board – Sid Cole (Alternate) 
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Franklin, 
‘Approve the Consent Agenda,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
Emergency Shelter, Low Barrier, and Transitional Housing Zoning Code 
Amendment (KMC 17.08, 17.15, 17.30) Discussion: City Manager Steve Taylor 
provided an update of the three proposed zoning amendments as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and as recommended by the Staff.  Planning Commission 
Chairman Rick Von Rock commented on the Planning Commission’s recommendations. 
Lengthy discussion followed.  Citizens who spoke from the audience were as follows: 
 Caleb Luther, 567 24th Avenue, Longview 
 Vanessa Plink, 1015 South 6th Avenue, Kelso 
 Adena Grigsby, 1109 South 3rd Avenue, Kelso (provided a signed petition) 
 Paul Lopez, 1014 South 4th Avenue, Kelso 
 Kim Lopez, 1014 South 4th Avenue, Kelso 
 Wallace Hall, 1101 South 3rd Avenue 
 Marilee Hertig, 1048 Carroll Road, Kelso 
 Ryan Rasmussen, 1105 North 7th Avenue, Kelso 
 Katie Le Blanc, 1518 Commerce Avenue, Longview 
 Amanda Rasmussen, 1105 North 7th Avenue, Kelso 

 
Mr. Taylor facilitated the discussion to obtain the Council’s consensus for modification 
recommendations to the proposed amendments.   The discussion proceeded as follows: 
 
 Industrial Zone   

Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Remove all of the uses out of the Industrial Zone.’ Motion passed, all 
voting yes.  



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                  7/01/14 Regular Meeting 
 
 Transitional Housing 

Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Keep Administrative Use for the Transitional Housing serving less 
the 10 clients in the Residential Single-family, Residential Multifamily, and 
Commercial Town Center Zones.’ Councilmembers Myers, Archer, Schimmel, 
Roberson, and McDaniel voted yes.  Councilmember Franklin voted no.  Motion 
passed, 5 to 1.      

 
Upon motion by Councilmember Franklin, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Keep the remaining staff recommendations relating to the Transitional 
Housing serving 10 or more clients in the Residential Multifamily, Commercial 
Town Center, Commercial West Kelso, and Commercial Specialty Retail Zones.’ 
Councilmembers Myers, Franklin, McDaniel, and Roberson voted yes. 
Councilmembers Archer and Schimmel voted no.  Motion passed, 4 to 2.         

 
Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Classify Transitional Housing serving 10 or more clients under 
Conditional Use.’  Councilmembers McDaniel, Myers, Schimmel, and Roberson 
voted yes.  Councilmembers Archer and Franklin voted no. Motion passed, 4 to 2.     

 
 Emergency Shelters 

Upon motion by Councilmember Franklin, seconded by Councilmember 
Schimmel, ‘Allow Emergency Shelters in the Commercial Town Center, 
Commercial West Kelso, and Commercial Specialty Retail Zones.’ 
Councilmembers Franklin, Myers, and Schimmel voted yes.  Councilmembers 
McDaniel, Archer, and Roberson voted no.  Motion failed.    

 
Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
Roberson, ‘Allow Emergency Shelters in the Commercial Town Center and 
Commercial West Kelso Zones.’ Councilmembers McDaniel, Myers, Franklin, 
Roberson, and Schimmel voted yes.  Councilmember Archer voted no.  Motion 
passed, 5 to 1.       

 
Upon motion by Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember 
Schimmel, ‘Classify Emergency Shelters under Conditional Use.’  
Councilmembers Myers, Schimmel, Franklin, McDaniel, and Roberson voted yes. 
Councilmember Archer voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1.     

 
 Urban Rest Stops 

Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Allow Urban Rest Stops in the Commercial Town Center and the 
Commercial West Kelso Zones.’ Discussion followed. Councilmembers Myers, 
McDaniel, Schimmel, and Roberson voted yes.  Councilmembers Franklin and 
Archer voted no.  Motion passed, 4 to 2.     



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                  7/01/14 Regular Meeting 
 

Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
Roberson, ‘Classify Urban Rest Stops under Conditional Use.’ Councilmembers 
Roberson, Schimmel, Franklin, Myers, and McDaniel voted yes.  Councilmember 
Archer voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1.     

 
 Definitions 

Upon motion by Councilmember Franklin, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Use the language as recommended by the Staff relating to Alcohol 
and Drug Use on the premises,’ Councilmembers McDaniel, Roberson, Myers, 
and Franklin voted yes.  Councilmembers Schimmel and Archer voted no.  
Motion passed, 4 to 2.    

 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. 14-3827 – Columbia and Cowlitz Railway Franchise Agreement:  
The Deputy Clerk read the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Schimmel, ‘Adopt Ordinance 
No. 14-3827, ‘AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO COLUMBIA & COWLITZ 
RAILWAY, LLC, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY 
(20) YEARS, THE RIGHT AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND 
OPERATE A RAILWAY WITHIN CERTAIN DESCRIBED LIMITS OF THE CITY 
OF KELSO.’  Motion passed, all voting yes.                  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:   Announced that the City of Kelso was a recipient of the 2014 AWC Well 
City Award.  He commented that this is the 4th year in a row that the City has received 
this award.   
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Finance Director Brian Butterfield:  Provided a report on the exit conference with the 
State Auditors.  He commented that the City received a clean audit opinion. 
 
Community Development Director/City Engineer Mike Kardas:  Provided an update 
on the West Main Realignment Project. 
 
Library Manager Cindy Donaldson:  Provided a report on the Summer Reading 
Program. 
 
Chief of Police Andrew Hamilton:  Commented that there have been some complaints 
related to fireworks recently.  He commented that the police are always busier when the 
weather is warm. 
 



Kelso City Council                               -4-                                  7/01/14 Regular Meeting 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Rick Roberson:  Reported on the AWC Conference. 
 
Gary Schimmel:  No report. 
 
Todd McDaniel:  No report. 
 
Gary Archer:  Reported on the AWC Conference. 
 
Jared Franklin:   He commented that he toured the water treatment plant. 
 
Dan Myers:  Provided an update on the Cowlitz Wahkiakum Council of Governments. 
 
There being no further business, Deputy Mayor Myers adjourned the meeting at 8:11p.m. 
 
 
 
  
      ____________________________________ 
                       DEPUTY MAYOR 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Utility Rate Study 
Presentation – FCS Group 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Gordon Wilson, FCS Group 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of: July 15, 2014  
 
Originator: ________Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

 
Agenda Item Attachments:    

 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City engaged FCS Group in 2013 to conduct a cost of service-based rate study for Kelso’s Water, 
Sewer, and Drainage (Stormwater) utilities.  Gordon Wilson, representing the consulting firm, will 
provide an indepth presentation on the recommended rate structure and adjustments for the utilities.   
 
The areas covered by the study included: 
 

• Evaluating financial policies 
• Developing a capital financing strategy for all three utilities 
• Assessing revenue needs and forecasting needed rate adjustments 
• Preparing a five-year rate schedule with across-the-board rate adjustments for water and 

stormwater 
• Performing a cost-of-service analysis for the sewer utility 
• Providing alternative rate structures for the sewer utility, including consideration of a tier-based 

flat rate for single-family sewer customers 
• Showing the customer bill impact for each utility and for all three combined 
• Providing a multi-jurisdictional rate comparison survey 
• Updating the Capital Recovery Fees for all three utilities 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
No action required at this time.  Staff will formally recommend rate adjustments in the fall as part of 
the biennial budget approval process.   



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Award Contract for: 
2014 CHAP St. Overlay 
Project #581401 
N. Kelso Ave. Waterline Replacement 
Project #591402 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer 

Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Development/Eng  
 
For Agenda of:  July 15, 2014   
 
Cost of Item: $   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
 
**The completed Agenda Summary with contractor name and amount, along with the bid tabulation will be 
walked on to the July 15th meeting as the bids won’t be opened until the 11th.** 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Schedule A:  The 2014 CHAP St. Overlay provides for the roadway improvement and repair of North Kelso 
Avenue from North Pacific Avenue to a point approximately 500 feet north of the Redpath Street intersection.  
The major work elements being 8,500 yd2 of Pavement Planning and 1,700 Tons of hot mix asphalt (HMA). 
 
Schedule B:  N. Kelso Ave. Waterline Replacement provides for the construction of approximately 725 linear 
feet of 6” Ductile Iron water distribution piping and associated valves, service meters, and appurtenances.  The 
project will include the removal and construction of approximately 490’ of concrete sidewalk. 
 
_____ bids were received for this project ranging from a high bid of $______________ to the low bid of 
$_______________.  The bid award is based on the combined price of Schedules A and B.  After reference 
checks, ________________________________ submitted the qualified low combined bid of 
$______________. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Schedule A of this project is funded by grant funds awarded to the City by the Transportation Improvement 
Board (TIB) under the City Hardship Assistance Program (CHAP). 
Schedule B of this project is funded through the Water Capital Reserve Fund. 
The qualified low bid for both Schedules of this project is $______________ above/below the Engineer’s 
Estimate of $331,845.00 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council award Schedules A and B for the above-referenced project to the lowest 
qualified bidder, __________________________________ in the amount of $______________. 
 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: Aldercrest Property 
Status Update   
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: July 15, 2014  
 
Originator:     
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The City Manager will present materials and lead a discussion regarding restrictions on the use of 
Aldercrest property for recreational purposes. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff seeks Council consensus on future disposition of the Aldercrest property. 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: Longview Public 
Development Authority – Hotel/Sports 
Complex Feasibility Studies 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: July 15, 2014  
 
Originator:     
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:   
 
Letter from City of Longview -  Project Proposal  
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The City Manager lead a discussion to gain consensus regarding Kelso’s financial contribution and 
participation in this project. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
Staff seeks Council consensus on whether or not to participate in the Hotel/Sports Complex Feasibility 
Study.   
 
 
 
 
 
 











AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Professional Services 
Agreement with Gordon, Thomas, Honeywell 
Government Affairs for Lobbying Services 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of: July 15, 2014  
 
Originator: ________Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

 
Agenda Item Attachments:    

• Professional Services Agreement with Gordon, Thomas, Honeywell Government Affairs 
• City of Kelso Request for Proposals for Lobbying Services 
• GTH-GA Lobbying Services Proposal for the City of Kelso 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City issued a request for proposals soliciting lobbying services from consultants specializing in 
municipal advocacy within Washington State.  Six proposals were received (one proposal was 
submitted after the June 20th closing date).  Three responding firms were interviewed by a panel of 
staff and two councilmembers.   
The firm recommended as the most experienced and best-suited to deliver the lobbying services 
specified within the RFP is Gordon, Thomas, Honeywell Government Affairs (GTH-GA).  Briahna Taylor 
and Alex Soldano would be the primary lobbying consultants working with the City. 
 
The attached professional services agreement outlines the terms of service, cost, and scope of work. 
The 12-month agreement will cost the City $2,000 per month with additional expenses prorated among 
the lobbyists’ broader municipal client base and not to exceed $2,000 throughout the year.  The total 
cost of the agreement would not exceed $26,000 during the 12-month period.  The agreement may be 
canceled by either party with 30 days notice.  If approved, work would begin August 1st. 
 
The City’s RFP and the consultant’s response (both attached) describe the expectations of service, 
experience, and advocacy program structure.  The primary purpose for engaging lobbying services is to 
elevate awareness of several specific City infrastructure priorities to the Legislature and relevant state 
agencies, and to advocate for funding and regulatory relief. 
 
 



OPTIONS: 
 
1.)  Move to approve the Professional Services Agreement with Gordon, Thomas, Honeywell 
Government Affairs for lobbying services. 
2.)  Do not approve the professional services agreement. 
3.)  Provide direction to staff for alternatives to the proposed agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Move to approve the Professional Services Agreement with Gordon, Thomas, Honeywell Government 
Affairs for loybbing services.   



CITY OF KELSO 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is entered into by and between City of Kelso and Gordon Thomas Honeywell 
Governmental Affairs (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), upon the following terms and 
conditions: 
 
A. Scope of Work. Consultant will advise and assist the City of Kelso in accordance with 
Consultant’s Scope of Work, described in Attachment “A” hereto and incorporated herein, and 
Consultant will do and produce such other things as are set forth in the Scope of Work (the 
“Services”). Consultant’s Services will be in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
orders, licenses and permits, now or hereinafter in effect, and Consultant shall furnish such 
documents as may be required to effect or evidence such compliance. 
 
B. Compensation; Expenses.  The City of Kelso will pay Consultant for satisfactorily rendered 
Services in accordance with the specific terms set forth in Attachment “A.” 
 
C. Invoices; Payment. Consultant will furnish the City of Kelso invoices at regular intervals, as 
set forth in Attachment “A.” 
 
D. Term. Consultant shall promptly begin the Services hereunder on the date set forth in 
Attachment “A” and shall terminate same on the date set forth in Attachment “A,” unless earlier 
terminated by mutual agreement.  The City of Kelso or consultant may terminate consultant services 
for convenience at any time prior to the termination date set forth in Attachment “A,” provided that 
either party provides 30-days notice. 
 
E. Ownership of Work Product.  The product of all work performed under this agreement, 
including reports, and other related materials shall be the property of the City of Kelso or its 
nominees, and the City of Kelso or its nominees shall have the sole right to use, sell, license, publish 
or otherwise disseminate or transfer rights in such work product.   
 
F. Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and nothing contained 
herein shall be deemed to make Consultant an employee of the City of Kelso, or to empower 
consultant to bind or obligate the City of Kelso in any way. Consultant is solely responsible for 
paying all of Consultant’s own tax obligations, as well as those due for any employee/subcontractor 
permitted to work for Consultant hereunder. 
 
G. Release of Claims; Indemnity. Consultant hereby releases, and shall defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless the City of Kelso from and against all claims, liabilities, damages and costs arising 
directly or indirectly out of, or related to, Consultant’s fault, negligence, strict liability or product 
liability of Consultant, and/or that of any permitted employee or subcontract or Consultant, 
pertaining to the Services hereunder. 
 
H.  Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, their agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors. 
 



2014-2015 Legislative Services Agreement 
Page 2 

 1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described 
below:   
 

A. Commercial General Liability insurance with written limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 
  B. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 
Insurance laws of the State of Washington. 

 
 C.  Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident covering all owned, non-
owned, hired and leased vehicles.   
 
 2. The Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state as follows:  
 

A.  The coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the City. 

 
B.  The coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any Insurance, self-

insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
I. Assignment. Consultant’s rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned or 
transferred without the City of Kelso’s prior written consent; subject thereto, this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ heirs, and successors.  
 
J. Governing Law; Severability. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Washington, U.S.A. (excluding conflict of laws provisions).  If any term or provision of this 
Agreement is determined to be legally invalid or unenforceable by a court with lawful jurisdiction 
hereover (excluding arbitrators), such term or provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability 
of any remaining terms or provisions of this Agreement, and the court shall, so far as possible, 
construe the invalid portion to implement the original intent thereof. 
 
K. Arbitration. Should any dispute arise concerning the enforcement, breach or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the parties shall first meet in a good faith attempt to resolve the 
dispute.  In the event such dispute cannot be resolved by agreement of the parties, such dispute 
shall be resolved by binding arbitration pursuant to RCW 7.04A, as amended, and the Mandatory 
Rules of Arbitration (MAR); venue shall be placed in Kelso, Cowlitz County, Washington, the 
laws of the State of Washington shall apply, and the prevailing party shall be entitled to its 
reasonable attorney fees and costs. 
 
  



2014-2015 Legislative Services Agreement 
Page 3 

L. Entire Agreement; Etc. This Agreement, and its incorporated attachments hereto, state the 
entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersede any prior 
agreements or understandings pertaining thereto. Any modification to this Agreement must be made 
in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both parties. Any provision hereof which may 
be reasonably deemed to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement shall so survive, 
and remain in continuing effect. No delay or failure in exercising any right hereunder shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any right granted hereunder or at law by either party. 
 
Consultant:  City of Kelso: 
Gordon Thomas Honeywell 
Governmental Affairs  
 
 
 
    
Briahna Taylor, Vice President  Steve Taylor, City Manager  
 
Date:   Date:   



2014-2015 Legislative Services Agreement 
Page 4 

ATTACHMENT “A” TO 
CITY OF KELSO CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

 
A. Scope of Work:  Consultant shall provide the City of Kelso with the following 

governmental affairs services: 
 

General Washington State Legislative Services 
• Identify and track all relevant legislation. 
• During the legislative session, provide the City with weekly reports and tracking 

lists. 
• Attend all relevant legislative hearings. 
• Attend all relevant legislative meetings. 
• Coordinate City officials to testify at relevant legislative hearings. 
• Lobby to amend, defeat or pass legislation or budgets that directly affect the 

City’s interests. 
• Strengthen relevant legislative relationships between the City, state legislators, 

and executive offices.   
• Work with the City to develop a legislative agenda that includes state budget 

requests and lobby the Legislature according to the legislative agenda.    
• Engage in coalition building as needed to implement legislative agenda items.  

 
Specific Legislative Issues: 

• Obtain specific allocations to replace city water facilities within the capital budget 
and assist in related grant/loan applications. 

• Pursue funding allocations or inclusion within a transportation revenue package 
for the completion of the final phase of the West Main Street Realignment 
Project. 

 
B. Compensation/Expenses: The City of Kelso shall pay Consultant a monthly fee of 

$2,000 for the services listed above.  Consultant shall only bill communication and travel 
expenses, such as mileage, cell phone use, conference call service use, etc.  Expenses 
shall not exceed $2,000 for the term of the contract.  

 
C. Invoices/Payments: (a) Consultant shall furnish the City of Kelso with invoices for 

services performed on a monthly basis, and (b) the City of Kelso shall pay each of 
Consultant’s invoices within thirty (30) days after City’s receipt and verification of 
invoices. 

 
D. Term of Agreement: Consultant’s services shall commence on August 1, 2014 and shall 

terminate on July 31, 2015. 



pg. 1 
 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

State Legislative Lobbying Services 

 

Introduction 

The City of Kelso (“City”) is seeking proposals from qualified consultants/firms/individuals (“consultant”) 
to represent the City on legislative issues during the 2015 State Legislative Session in Olympia. 

The consultant must have demonstrated experience in lobbying the Washington State Legislature, with 
extensive experience on behalf of similar public sector clients preferred.  At least five (5) years’ 
experience in providing legislative and intergovernmental services before the legislative and executive 
branches is required.   The consultant should have demonstrated experience in bipartisan relationships 
with a network of access to legislators, administrative executives, and staff.  The City seeks a strong 
lobbyist with sound knowledge of public policy, clear understanding of the legislative process and 
effective communication skills. 

 

Background 

The City of Kelso (pop. 11,940), incorporated in 1889, is located in southwestern Washington on the 
Interstate 5 corridor in Cowlitz County along the Cowlitz, Columbia, and Coweeman Rivers.  Kelso shares 
its western border with the City of Longview.  The City is the state’s only “chartered” code city and is 
governed by a city charter as well as RCW Title 35A, a.k.a. the Optional Municipal Code.  The City 
operates under the Council-Manager form of government where legislative authority is concentrated in 
the elected City Council, which hires a professional administrator to implement its policies. 

The City directly provides the following municipal services:  law enforcement, water treatment & 
distribution, wastewater collection, parks, stormwater and street maintenance, engineering & public 
works, general administration, planning and community development, and library.  The City contracts 
for solid waste collection, animal control, and court services.  Wastewater treatment is provided by an 
outside agency. 

The City is seeking professional services in the development and execution of a legislative advocacy 
program with capital funding solutions for both aging and substandard critical and transportation 
infrastructure within the City’s boundaries.  Additionally, the program will complement the efforts of 



pg. 2 
 

other municipal advocacy programs that identify and take action on legislation and regulations that 
positively and negatively impact the City’s interests. 

 

Scope of Work 

The consultant will be responsible for monitoring, identifying and prioritizing challenges and 
opportunities for the City with respect to issues under consideration by the State Legislature and state 
and regional agencies.   

It is anticipated that the duration of this scope of work will be in advance of and throughout the 2015 
legislative session and the period during which the Governor may take action on bills passed during the 
session. 

The following is to be used as a general guide, and is not intended to be a complete list of all work 
necessary to complete any efforts: 

1. Identify state legislation and legislative proposals that may impact the City; 
2. Identify proposed state regulatory changes that may impact the City; 
3. Work with the City Council and City Manager’s Office to develop positions on relevant 

legislation, as appropriate; 
4. Provide assistance to the City Council and City Manager’s Office in arranging lobbying visits to 

Olympia to help ensure productive meetings; 
5. Draft legislation and amendments, as necessary; 
6. Lobby for the City’s position on legislation and regulatory matters of interest, including: 

a. Direct contact and communication with state legislators and staff on behalf of the City; 
b. Direct contact and communication with state agencies on behalf of the City; 
c. Direct contact and communication with other cities, counties and special districts on 

behalf of the City; 
d. Direct contact and communication with associations and other special interest groups, 

including but not limited to the Association of Washington Cities and other associations 
that may have similar interests or interests that conflict with those of the City; 

e. Drafting letters and talking points on legislation as necessary; 
f. Testifying on behalf of the City at hearings before legislative and interim legislative 

committees; 
g. Maintain close working relationships with the City Manager and designated members of 

City staff; 
h. Provide weekly written briefing reports for the City Council and City Manager on key 

issues and legislative committee activity during the legislative session; 
i. Provide briefings in person and periodically as requested, to the City Council and City 

Manager on key issues, legislative committee or legislative session status. 
 
 



pg. 3 
 

Required Respondent Information 

1. Letter of interest. 
2. Proposed plan including plan for briefing the City Manager and Councilmembers on the issues 

prior to and during the legislative session, maintaining continuous communications during the 
session and implementing a decision-making process on issues that demand a quick turnaround 
time. 

3. A summary of relevant experience in the last five (5) years; specifically, please describe the 
outcome of lobbying efforts you conducted. 

4. A complete list of current clients and those served during the twelve (12) months preceding the 
submission date and a declaration of any potential incompatibility or conflicts of interest 
between those clients and the City of Kelso. 

5. A list of five (5) references. 
6. Each question should be repeated with the response following: 

a. The legal name of consultant/firm/individual, address, telephone number, number of 
years in business, and current number of full-time professional and technical personnel 
with the consultant/firm; 

b. Name and telephone number of the consultant who will be in charge of the actual work 
performed for the City; 

c. The address and telephone number of the office(s) where the work is to be undertaken; 
d. Outline approach with a proposed project schedule to conducting the work detailed 

under “Scope of Work;” 
e. Itemized cost of services and any customary charges for services to be rendered.  

Include staff hourly rates, alternative retainer proposals, a description of the process 
used to fairly allocate costs among consultant’s/firm’s/individual’s multiple clients to 
avoid double-billing for time spent in legislative activities; and 

f. Estimate of expenses incurred that will be billed to the City. 

 

Selection Criteria 

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria: 

1. Thoroughness and understanding of work to be completed; 
2. Overall experience of staff assigned to the work; 
3. Recent public sector experience conducting similar lobbying efforts; 
4. Interpersonal compatibility with City officials; and 
5. Cost. 

  



pg. 4 
 

Selection Process 

The City Manager’s Office will review the submitted proposals for completeness and qualifications to 
determine those consultant(s) to be invited to an interview and oral presentation. 

Upon completion of all interviews, the City will advise the respondents of its selection. 

Professional Services Agreement for the work will be prepared and executed. 

 

Discretion and Liability Waiver 

1. Company personnel signing the cover letter of the proposal must be an authorized signer with 
the authority to represent the firm and to enter into a binding contract with the City. 

2. Proposed services and related pricing contained in the proposal must be valid for a period of 
one (1) year after the deadline for submission of the proposal, June 20, 2014. 

3. The City will make every effort to administer the proposal in accordance with the terms and 
dates outlined in the RFP; however, the City reserves the right to modify the activities, timeline, 
or any other aspect of the process at any time as deemed necessary by City staff. 

4. By requesting proposals, the City is in no way obligated to award a contract or pay the expenses 
of consultant(s) in connection with the preparation or submission of a proposal. 

5. The awarding of a contract shall be contingent on the availability of funds and the necessary 
staff and City Council approvals. 

6. The City reserves the right to request and obtain from one or more of the consulting firms 
submitting proposals, supplementary information as may be necessary for City staff to analyze 
the proposals pursuant to the consultant selection criteria contained herein. 

7. The City may require consultant(s) to participate in additional rounds of more refined submittals 
before the ultimate selection of a consulting team is made.  These rounds could encompass 
revisions of the submittal criteria in response to the nature and scope of the initial proposal. 

8. The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any non-material 
irregularities or informalities in any proposal, and to accept or reject any item or combination of 
items. 

9. Additionally, factors such as, but not limited to, the following may disqualify a proposal without 
further consideration: 

a. Evidence of collusion among respondents. 
b. Any attempt to improperly influence any member of City staff or any elected official of 

the City of Kelso. 
c. A respondent’s default under any type of agreement, which resulted in the termination 

of that agreement. 
d. Existence of any unresolved litigation between the respondent and the City. 

 



pg. 5 
 

Proposal Format and Submittal Instructions 

Please submit one (1) original proposal and three (3) copies of all materials submitted.  The proposal 
should include the following information: 

1. Letter of interest. 
2. “Required Respondent Information” as listed above. 
3. Attachments:  Resumes 

Deliver proposals to: 

Brian Butterfield, City Clerk 
City of Kelso 
P.O. Box 819 
203 S. Pacific #217 
Kelso, WA 98626 

Proposals are due no later than 4:00pm on June 20, 2014.  Any proposal received after the deadline will 
not be considered.  Faxed or electronic (e-mail) submittals will not be accepted. 

Should you have any questions about this request for proposal or for questions concerning the scope of 
work, please contact Amy Mullerleile at (360) 577-3301 or e-mail amullerleile@kelso.gov. 

 

mailto:amullerleile@kelso.gov












































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE 
KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 
EMERGENCY HOUSING, LOW BARRIER 
EMERGENCY HOUSING, AND URBAN REST 
STOPS AND IDENTIFYING THE 
PERMITTED ZONES FOR SUCH USES, 
ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FOR SUCH 
USES, AND REPEALING THE 
MORATORIUM IN EFFECT ON SUCH USES 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of:  July 15, 2014   
 
Originator:     
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Proposed Ordinance 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes w/ Public Hearing – May 13, 2013 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2014 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

In December 2013, the City Council was approached by a group of citizens who were 
concerned that a certain type of development may be moving forward within the City known as low 
barrier housing, which was not adequately regulated and would allow negative secondary effects in 
their residential neighborhood. In order to allow time to review the matter and evaluate what 
regulations should be in place, the City Council adopted a moratorium on January 21, 2014 that 
temporarily prohibited low barrier shelters and urban rest stops. This moratorium is in effect until July 
21, 2014. 

 
 Since the moratorium was adopted extensive research and discussion surrounding this issue 
has occurred at the staff, Planning Commission, and Council level. Throughout the process, staff and 
the Planning Commission have differed on the appropriate way to allow the siting of these facilities. 
At the May 13, 2014 Planning Commission a public hearing was held and two draft zoning ordinances 
were brought forward for consideration; further direction was provided to staff from the Commission. 
At the June 10, 2014 Planning Commission meeting, after lengthy deliberation, a single revised 
ordinance was recommended for consideration by the City Council. 
 



 At the June 17 and July 1 City Council meetings, Council continued to discuss the issue. The 
current iteration of the proposed ordinance is reflective of the direction staff received at the July 1 
Council meeting. 

 
OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the revised recommendation 
2. Remand the issue back to the Planning Commission for additional consideration and extend 

the moratorium 
3. Do nothing and extend moratorium 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to adopt the ordinance amending the Kelso municipal code relating to emergency housing, low 
barrier housing and urban rest stops on second reading. 



ORDINANCE NO.  __________ 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO EMERGENCY HOUSING, LOW BARRIER 
EMERGENCY HOUSING, AND URBAN REST STOPS AND 
IDENTIFYING THE PERMITTED ZONES FOR SUCH USES, 
ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FOR SUCH USES, AND REPEALING 
THE MORATORIUM IN EFFECT ON SUCH USES. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 14-3819 imposing a six-month moratorium on 
applications for transitional housing land uses within the City; and  

WHEREAS, low barrier emergency housing facilities are a developing trend in the provision of 
social services to better meet the needs of the homeless population; these facilities have minimum 
admission requirements and do not prohibit illegal or addictive behaviors as a condition of 
admission and their primary purpose appears to be harm reduction instead of transition to 
permanent housing; and 

WHEREAS, urban rest stops are also a developing trend in the provision of social services; these 
uses provide general day use of facilities to assist those who may not have permanent housing 
such as laundry and cooking facilities, bathrooms, and showers; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that potential secondary impacts from the establishment of 
low barrier and emergency shelter facilities and urban rest stops are not appropriate for any 
zoning designation within the City, and  

WHEREAS, the Council has studied the land uses and other secondary impacts of these uses and 
has now drafted a zoning ordinance to address these impacts; and  

WHEREAS the City Council finds that the health safety and welfare of the community is best 
served by these amendments to the Kelso Zoning Code regulating these uses; and  

WHEREAS, the SEPA Responsible Official issued a threshold decision for this draft ordinance 
on June 16, 2014, which was not appealed; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held several meetings and workshops to review and 
deliberate the issues surrounding these uses and on May 13, 2014, the Planning Commission held 
a public hearing on the draft zoning ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the draft zoning ordinance to 
the Council; and  

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2014, the City Council considered the draft zoning ordinance during its 
regular meeting; and  



WHEREAS, the Council has decided to adopt zoning regulations related to emergency and low 
barrier shelters and urban rest stops and to formally repeal the interim zoning ordinance related 
these uses;  

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Repeal of Moratorium.  The moratorium imposed under Ordinance 
No._______ is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 

 SECTION 2.  Findings Adopted.  The City Council adopts all of the ‘whereas’ sections 
of this Ordinance as findings in support of this ordinance.   
 
 SECTION_3.  KMC Section 17.08 Amended.  Kelso Municipal Code Section 17.08.020 
is hereby amended to add and revise the definitions as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated fully by this reference.   
 
 SECTION 4.  KMC Section 17.15.020 Amended.  Kelso Municipal Code Section 
17.15.020 is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated fully by 
this reference.   
 
 SECTION 5.  KMC Section 17.30.040 Amended.  Kelso Municipal Code Section 
17.15.040 is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated fully by 
this reference.  
   
 SECTION 6.  Corrections.  Upon approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk and code 
reviser are authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including without 
limitation the correction of clerical errors, references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, 
rules, or regulations; or ordinance numbering and section/subsection numbering.  
  
 SECTION 7.  Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person, establishment, or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect the other provisions or application of this Ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 9.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 5 days 
after its passage and publication of summary as required by law. 
  



ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this ____ day of ___________, 

2014. 

 

       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION:    MAYOR 
 
________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
PUBLISHED:_____________________ 
  



Exhibit A 

Chapter 17.08.020—Definitions 

… 

 

“Emergency shelter” means a congregate facility providing housing to shelter families and 
individuals offered on an emergency basis for a period not to exceed ninety days continuously. 
Shelters may offer meals, lodging and associated services on site, aimed at helping people move 
towards self-sufficiency.  

 

… 

 

“Transitional housing facility” means a project congregate facility that has as its purpose 
facilitating the movement of homeless individuals and families to permanent housing within a 
reasonable amount of time (usually twenty-four months). Transitional housing includes housing 
primarily designed to serve deinstitutionalized homeless individuals and other homeless 
individuals with mental or physical disabilities and homeless families with children.  

 

NEW— 

“Urban Rest Stop” means a facility that provides day use services rather than overnight stays and 
provides different kinds of facilities and services to assist those who may not have permanent 
housing, such as laundry facilities, cooking facilities, bathrooms, and showers. 



 

Exhibit B—Table 17.15 

Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

RESIDENTIAL 

Single-family residence 

(A, L) 
I I1  I1 I1 I1 I1 I1   

Duplex (L) I2 I3  I I      

Multiple-family dwellings, 

including rooming and 

boarding houses, 

triplexes, fourplexes, 

condominiums, apartment 

houses and apartment 

courts  

 I   I4 I4 I4 I4 I4   

Day care family home* I I         

Day care mini-center*  I         

Day care—adult* II II                 

Adult family home II II   I1 I1 I1 I1 I1     



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Expansion and/or 

reconstruction of a 

residence  

I I III        

Mobile home parks and 

subdivisions (B)  II         

Livestock* (R)  I16          

Accessory apartment* (T) II                   

Temporary manufactured 

home for aged relative 

(U) 

II                   

AMUSEMENT AND RECREATION 

Recreation facilities, 

active* 
II II III18  I5 I I I I II  II  

Recreation facilities, 

passive* 
I I I        

Participant sports and 

recreation—indoor    III5 I I/II7 I I II   

Participant sports and   III18  II   II  I   



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

recreation—outdoor 

Trails   I        

Wildlife and nature 

preserves   I        

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

Art galleries, 

noncommercial 
II  II         

Auditoriums, clubhouses, 

meeting halls    II5 I  I I   

Community centers II  II  II5  I  I  I I I I 

Educational, cultural, or 

governmental 
II  II   II I III I I II I 

Health care facilities* III III  II I I7 I I   

Clinics—walk in*       II II I I I     

Hospital III III       III         

Marinas, boardwalks, 

public piers    I I  I I   



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Museums III III  II II      

Assisted living home* II  II    II     

Post office    I       

Religious facilities II II  II5 II II7 II II II II 

Social and fraternal clubs 

and lodges  II6  II II      

Group home* II II                 

Halfway house* II II  II5             

Day care center* II II  I5 II II II II II  

Transitional housing*--

Facilities serving less 

than ___10__ clients 

II II  II5             

Transitional housing * -- 

Facilities serving 10__ or 

more clients 

 III  III III  III    

Emergency Shelter*    III III      

Urban rest stop*    III III      



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

MANUFACTURING 

Agriculture* including 

agricultural processing 
         II I 

Fabrication, manufacture, 

assembly, processing, 

packaging, repair, 

servicing of goods 

        I9 I9 

Any principally permitted 

use whose operations are 

predominantly out-of-

doors rather than 

completely enclosed 

within a building  

        II I 

Aquaculture   II        

Commercial indoor 

storage         I I 

Commercial moving and 

freight terminals         II I 



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Computer and electronic 

equipment and products         I I 

Food products         I I 

Furniture and fixtures         I I 

Junk or salvage yards           I 

Laboratories for scientific 

research, testing and 

experimental 

development that can be 

performed with minimal 

adverse impact on, and 

pose no special hazard 

to, the environment and 

the community 

        I I 

Marijuana producer, 

processor 
                I20 I20 

Mechanical, automotive, 

trucking, 

agricultural/forestry and 

        I I 



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

contractors’ or builders’ 

equipment and supplies 

Marine-oriented 

commercial and industrial 

activities 

        II10 II10 

Microbrewery*       II5, 7     II II II II 

Printing and publishing         I I 

Recycling centers       II II  I I 

Sales of items 

manufactured on site         II II 

Skating rink—indoor               II III III 

Vehicle towing and 

storage services 
                II II 

Vocational schools         I I 

Winery/brewery         I I 

Wood products         I I 

RETAIL TRADE AND SERVICE  



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Automobile sales—new 

or used     I  I I II   

Bed and breakfast* II II  II1 I I I I   

Brewpub       I I I I I     

Cart vendors    I II II II I I II 

Cemeteries, mausoleums 

and columbaria 
III III         

Convenience stores 

including gasoline sales 

and/or a car wash facility  

    II II I    

Crematorium III III         

Entertainment (e.g., 

theaters, video game 

arcades, etc., except 

adult motion picture 

theaters and other uses 

as described in Section 

17.30.040, Adult oriented 

   I7 I II I I   

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/kelso/html/Kelso17/Kelso1730.html#17.30.040


Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

business (AOB) overlay 

zone) 

Farmer’s market       I17 I17 I17 I17 I17     

Fitness center/sports club       II II II I I II   

Formula take-out food 

restaurant with drive-

through 

    I  I I   

Formula take-out food 

restaurant without drive-

through 

   I7 I  I I   

Hotels, motels, inns*    I7 I  I I   

Home occupation, major* 

(G, H) 
II II         

Home occupation, minor* 

(F, H) 
I I         

Kennels* (V)         II   II II II   

Minor vessel repair shop      I I  I  I 

Mixed  III  I4, 7 I4 I4 I4 I4   



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

commercial/residential 

Mortuaries, funeral 

homes and funeral 

chapels 

III III  II5, 7 II   II    

Personal services*    I5, 7 I I I I   

Pet shop*       I I I I I     

Professional offices  III  I7 I I I I II8 I8 

Restaurants    I7 I  I I II11 II11 

Retail sales marijuana                 I20 I20 

Retail sales and services 

with drive-through 

businesses* (I) 

    I  I I II   

Retail sales and services 

without drive-through 

businesses  

   I7, 12 I I7 I I   

Retail sales and services 

with screened outdoor 

storage 

      II5, 7 II    II II I I 



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Roadside stands       I17 I17 I17 I17 I17     

RV sales, storage and 

repair 
                I I 

Secondhand/consignment 

stores    I7, 12 I I7 I I   

Sexually oriented 

business* (E)           

Small engine repair       I I  I   

Taverns    I7 I  I I   

Uses which service the 

automobile (e.g., gasoline 

service station, car wash, 

minor/major vehicle repair 

shops) 

    II I13 I I I   

Veterinarian clinics* (V)      I7 II II   

Caretaker residence (K)         I I 

Temporary uses (S) I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 I17 

Wholesale sales with             II II II   



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

limited retail sales 

TRANSPORTATION 

Park and ride lots*     II II I II   

Park and ride lots, shared 

use* 
II II       II I 

Parking as principal use    II I  I I II I 

Transit facilities    I14       

UTILITIES 

Public and private utility 

buildings and structures 

(L) 

II II II  II II II II II II II 

Communication 

antennas, category 1 (N) 
I I I I I I I I I I 

Communication 

antennas, category 2 (O) 
II   II I I I  I I I I 

Communication 

antennas, category 3 (P) 
    II   II   II II I I 



Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and Services 

Commercial

—Major 

Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

Communication towers 

and monopoles (Q) 
    II19  II19   II19 II19  II19  II19  

WHOLESALE TRADE—STORAGE  

Self-service storage 

facilities; provided, that no 

outside storage is visible 

from adjoining properties 

and public rights-of-way  

          III     I   

Warehousing (wholesale, 

bulk retail and trade)  
              III     

I = Type I Permitted Use 

II = Type II Administrative Use 

III = Type III Conditional Use 

* = Defined Term 

Letters and numbers refer to footnotes and regulatory notes within Sections 17.15.030 and 17.15.040. 
  

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/kelso/html/Kelso17/Kelso1715.html#17.15.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/kelso/html/Kelso17/Kelso1715.html#17.15.040


Exhibit C 

KMC 17.15.040(C) 

 

C. Halfway houses, group homes,  and transitional housing, emergency shelters, and urban rest 
stops are subject to the following standards: 

1. One off-street parking space is required for each on-shift, nonresidential employee in 
addition to the residential parking requirements. Residential driveways are acceptable access 
ways. 

2. Access streets, parking and/or loading areas shall be sufficient to safely accommodate the 
number of estimated vehicle trips generated by the use. 

3. No structured area for active play or play structures may be located in the front yard. In 
the event of double frontage or similar situations, the director or designee shall determine 
which yard would have the least visual impact to the neighborhood. 

4. The site shall conform to the lot size, building size, setback and lot coverage requirements 
of the zoning district.  

5. Provide an off-street drop-off/pick-up area. 

6. Comply with all business licensing requirements. 

7. No structural or decorative alteration is permitted in a residential zone if that alteration 
changes the residential character of an existing residential structure or is incompatible with 
surrounding residences. 

8. An on-site vehicle turnaround, or separate entrance and exit points, and passenger loading 
area must be developed for review and approval by the city engineer. 

9. The site must be landscaped in a manner compatible with adjacent residences in 
residential zones according to a plan approved by the community development department. 

10. The following additional criteria shall govern the review and approval of a conditional 
use permit for transitional housing, emergency shelters and urban rest stops:  



  A. Site Plan. A detailed site plan shall be submitted with the application. The 
Examiner may increase the Development Standards of the Kelso Municipal Code as 
necessary to ensure compatibility of the use with surrounding uses. The Examiner shall take 
into consideration the neighborhood character and any adopted neighborhood plans. 

 B. Compliance with Building Code. Facilities must comply with all applicable 
standards, including International Building Code (IBC) standards for the number of 
residents or clients served. Adequate kitchens, bathrooms, lighting, safety features, and 
site access for emergency vehicles are required.  

 C. Separation. Facilities must be at least 1/2 mile from the same uses. 

 D.  Drugs and Alcohol. Use of alcohol and controlled substances, except by 
prescription, is strictly prohibited at the premises. 

E.   Operations. Applicant must provide staffing and operating procedures 
adequate to the type of facility and adequate to address the secondary impacts of the facility. 

 



















AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 

 
SUBJECT TITLE:   
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF KELSO ADOPTING RULES OF 
PROCEDURE OF THE KELSO CITY COUNCIL. 
 
  
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: July 15, 2014 
 
Originator:     
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Proposed Resolution 
Exhibit A – Draft Council Rules of Procedure 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
At the May 6, 2014 Council meeting it was suggested that a review of the Council Rules and 
Procedures was needed. At the May 20, 2014 Council meeting, three council members agreed to 
meet with staff to review the Rules and propose amendments for consideration by the full Council. 
That meeting occurred on May 27, 2014 and the attached draft reflects the proposed changes.  
 
Most of the changes are minor housekeeping items. The most substantial changes are: 
 

• In Section 6. Council Committees/Appointments the wording was altered to provide more 
flexibility for appointing Council members to committees. 

• The flag salute was removed from Section 8. Order of Business to reflect that the flag salute 
will continue to occur before the meeting has been officially called to order. 

• Section 12. Public Hearings was changed to make the time allotted for citizen comments 
consistent with the time allowed during public testimony in Section 10. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to adopt the Resolution amending the City Council’s Rules and Procedures. 
 
 
 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  __________ 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF KELSO ADOPTING RULES AND PROCEDURES OF THE 
KELSO CITY COUNCIL. 

 

 WHEREAS, On February 5, 2013 the Kelso City Council adopted the ‘Council 

Rules’ to govern both its internal management and the procedures available to the public, 

in conformance with the customary practice of legislative bodies; and 

 WHEREAS, the Council Rules should guide and facilitate Councilmember duties 

and meeting deliberations as well as provide the public with an understanding of council 

functions; and 

 WHEREAS, periodic alterations to the Council’s internal procedures are 

appropriate to better serve the Council’s needs. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO 

HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The ‘Council Rules’ of the Kelso City Council, dated May 28, 2014, 

attached to this resolution, are adopted as the official rules and procedures of the Kelso 

City Council. 

SECTION 2: This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

 ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

_______________, 2014. 

 

                       
                                                                           __________________________________ 
                                    MAYOR 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION: 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 1 of 8 

KELSO CITY COUNCIL 
Council Rules and Procedures 

SECTION 1.  GENERAL.  

These rules constitute the official rules and procedures for the Kelso City Council. In all decisions arising 
from points of order which are not covered by these rules, the Council shall be governed by Robert’s 
Rules of Order (newly revised), a copy of which is maintained in the office of the Kelso City Clerk. The 
City Attorney shall decide all questions of interpretations of these rules and other questions of a 
parliamentary nature which may arise at the Council meeting.  

SECTION 2.  ORGANIZATION.  

A. Swearing in of New Councilmembers. New Councilmembers shall be sworn in by the City Clerk 
or delegate. The swearing in will occur at the first meeting of the City Council held in January 
following certification of the election. 

B. Election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor. The motion to elect the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor will 
be placed on the Agenda of the first regular City Council meeting in January following 
certification of the election and the Mayor and Deputy Mayor will serve in office for a term as 
specified by city charter. During the election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor, the city clerk shall 
serve as Chair. 

In the event the Mayor is unable to serve the remainder of the term, due to his or her removal 
from office, or his or her resignation as Mayor or from the City Council, or upon his or her death, 
the Deputy Mayor shall serve as Mayor for the remainder of that term and a new Deputy Mayor 
shall be elected.  

In the event the Deputy Mayor is unable to serve the remainder of the term, a new Mayor shall 
be elected at the next regular meeting.  

1. Nomination Procedure. No one Councilmember may nominate more than one person for a 
given office until every member wishing to nominate a candidate has an opportunity to do 
so. Nominations do not require a second vote. The Chair will repeat each nomination until 
all nominations have been made. When it appears that no one else wishes to make any 
further nominations, the chair will ask again for further nominations and if there are none 
the Chair will declare the nominations closed. A motion to close the nominations is not 
necessary.  

2. Voting Procedure. After nominations have been closed, voting for Mayor takes place in the 
order nominations were made. Councilmembers will be asked for a raise of hands. As soon 
as one of the nominees receives a majority vote (four votes), then the Chair will declare the 
nominee elected. No votes will be taken on the remaining nominees. A tie vote results in a 
failed nomination. If none of the nominees receive a majority vote, the Chair will call for 
nominations again and repeat the process until a single candidate receives a majority vote 
before the Office of Deputy Mayor is opened for nominations.  

C. General Decorum.  

1. While the Council is in session, the members must preserve order and decorum, and a 
member shall neither, by conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings or 



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 2 of 8 

the peace of the Council, nor disrupt any member while speaking, nor refuse to obey the 
orders of the Council or the Mayor, except as otherwise provided in these Rules. 

2.  Any person making personal or slanderous remarks or who becomes disorderly while 
addressing the Council or while in the Council Chamber while the Council is in session, shall 
be asked to leave by the Presiding Officer.  

D. Confidentiality.  

1. Councilmembers shall keep confidential all written materials and verbal information 
provided to them during Executive Sessions, to ensure that the City’s position is not 
compromised. Confidentiality also includes information provided to Councilmembers 
outside of Executive Sessions when the information is considered to be exempt from 
disclosure under the Revised Code of Washington or under Public Disclosure Ordinance 
adopted by the Council. 

2. If the Council, after Executive Session, has provided direction or consensus to City staff on 
proposed terms and conditions for any confidential or privileged issue, all contact with any 
other party shall be made by the designated City staff representative handling the issue. 
Councilmembers should consult with the City Manager and/or City Attorney prior to 
discussing such information with anyone other than other Councilmembers, the City 
Attorney or City staff designated by the City Manager. Any Councilmember having any 
contact or discussion with any person other than those listed above on any such confidential 
or privileged issue shall make full disclosure to the City Manager and Council in a timely 
manner.  

E. Council Conduct – “No Surprise” Doctrine.  Councilmembers should adhere to the “Doctrine of 
No Surprises” in an attempt to conduct Council business with the most thorough information 
available during Council meetings.  The doctrine is meant as a general guideline to be followed 
and not a mandate. 

1. Councilmembers should take adequate time for preparation prior to each Council meeting 
to review agenda materials, take notes, and visit sites as necessary. 

2. The City Manager or staff should be contacted prior to each meeting for questions that arise 
or require additional research. 

3.  Inform the City Manager prior to each meeting if questions or requests for research have 
been asked of staff. 

4. Notify the City Manager, the Mayor and fellow Councilmembers prior to a meeting if a 
member plans to bring forward an item that is not currently on the agenda. 
  

F. City Clerk. The Clerk or an authorized Deputy Clerk shall attend all Council Meetings. If the Clerk 
and the Deputy Clerk are absent from any Council Meeting, the City Manager shall appoint a 
Clerk Pro Tempore for that meeting only.  

SECTION 3.  OFFICERS.  

A. Presiding Officers. The Mayor, or in his or her absence, the Deputy Mayor, shall be the Presiding 
Officer of the Council. In the absence of both the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor, the Council shall 
appoint one of the members of the Council to act as a temporary Presiding Officer.  

B. Presiding Officer’s Duties. It shall be the duty of the Presiding Officer to:  

1. Call the meeting to order  



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 3 of 8 

2. Keep the meeting to its order of business  

3. Control discussion in an orderly manner  
a. Every Councilmember who wishes an opportunity to speak must be recognized by the 

chair.  
b. Permit audience participation at the appropriate times.  
c. Require all speakers to speak to the question and to observe the rules of order.  

4. State each motion before it is discussed and before it is voted upon.  

5. Put motions to a vote and announce the outcome.  

C. Presiding Officer, Question or Order. The Presiding Officer shall decide all questions of order, 
subject to the right of appeal to the Council by any member.  

D. Request for Written Motions. Motions shall be reduced to writing when required by the 
Presiding Officer of the Council or any member of the Council. All resolutions and ordinances 
shall be in writing.  

SECTION 4.  DUTIES AND PRIVILEGES OF COUNCILMEMBERS.  

A. Forms of Address. The Mayor shall be addressed as “Mayor (surname).” “Your Honor,” or 
Mr./Madam Mayor. Members of the Council shall be addressed according to their preference as 
“Councilmember (surname),” “Councilor (surname),” or Mr./Mrs./Miss/Ms. (surname).  

B. Seating Arrangement at Regular Meetings. The Mayor shall sit at the center of the Council, and 
the Deputy Mayor shall sit at the right hand of the Mayor. Other Councilmembers are to be 
assigned seating at random and rotated quarterlyed in accordance with KMC 2.04.070. If there is 
a dispute, seating shall be in position order. 

SECTION 5.  CITY ADVISORY COMMITTEES  

The City of Kelso’s Commissions, Committees, and Task Forces provide an invaluable service to the City. 
Their advice on a wide variety of subjects aids the Council in the decision-making process.  Effective 
citizen participation is an invaluable tool for local government.  All City Advisory Committees are 
advisory to the City Council and are not authorized to take independent action representing the City 
with other agencies or bodies.  

A. Establishment of Advisory Bodies. These advisory bodies will be established by City Resolution 
or Ordinance, if required by state statute. The enacting resolution will set forth the size of each 
advisory group, which will be related to its duties and responsibilities; the term of office of its 
members; a statement of its purpose and function; and time lines, if relevant to the scope of 
work.  The Council may dissolve any advisory body that, in their opinion, has completed its 
working function or for any other reason.  

B. Appointments to Advisory Bodies. Vacancies may be advertised so that any interested citizen 
may submit an application. Applicants are urged to be citizens of the City of Kelso, but 
applications from residents living outside of the corporate boundaries may be considered if 
authorized by the resolution or ordinance establishing the advisory body.  

Appointments to advisory bodies will be made by the City Council during a regularly scheduled 
meeting. Newly appointed members will receive a briefing by the Commission, Committee, or 
Task Force Chairperson and/or City staff regarding duties and responsibilities of the members of 
the advisory body.  Appointees to advisory bodies may be removed prior to the expiration of 
their term of office by a majority vote of the City Council.  



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 4 of 8 

C. Conduct of Business. The advisory body will normally adopt rules for transaction of business, 
and will determine the number of meetings necessary for the business needs of the advisory 
group, unless otherwise established in the enacting resolution or ordinance. All meetings are 
subject to the public meetings laws of the State of Washington and City Ordinance.  

SECTION 6.  COUNCIL COMMITTEES/APPOINTMENTS  

Council committees are policy review and discussion arms of the City Council. Committees may study 
issues and develop recommendations for consideration by the City Council. Committees may not take 
binding action on behalf of the City.  

The City Council may meet for study or special project purposes as a Committee of the Whole or may 
establish Council subcommittees with three or fewer members.  

Council Committee structure shall be as determined by the City Council in January of each year and may 
include:Councilmembers may be assigned to serve on committees and as liaisons to outside agencies as 
described below.  Assignments shall be as determined by the City Council in January of each year, or as 
the Council deems necessary:  

A. Council Committee of the Whole - (Seven Councilmembers)  

B. Subcommittees of the City Council - Ad hoc and informal working or study group (three or fewer 
Councilmembers)  

C. Councilmember appointments - to task teams or City advisory boards, commissions and 
committees (three or fewer Councilmembers)  

D. Liaison/Representative Appointments - to other advisory bodies or groups.  

SECTION 7.  MEETINGS.  

All Council Meetings shall comply with the requirements of the Open Meetings Act (Chapter 42.30 
RCW). All Regular Meetings and Special Meetings of the Council shall be open to the public.  

The City Manager, or his or her designee, shall attend all meetings of the City Council including Regular 
meetings, special meetings, and executive session, except if Council meets in Executive Session with the 
City Attorney on matters of potential conflict for the City Manager.  

A. Regular Meetings. The Council shall hold Regular Meetings on the first and third Tuesday of each 
month. The Regular Meeting will begin at 6:00 p.m., unless an Executive Session is scheduled at 
the beginning of the agenda.  

B. Special Meetings. Special Meetings may be held by the Council subject to notice requirements 
prescribed by State law. Special Meetings may be called by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, or any 
three members of the City Council by notice delivered by regular or electronic mail to each 
member of the Council and to each local media outlet which has requested notice at least 
twenty-four hours before the time specified for the proposed meeting. The notice of such 
Special Meetings shall state the subjects to be considered, and no subject other than those 
specified in the notice shall be considered.  

C. Executive Sessions. The Council may hold Executive Sessions from which the public may be 
excluded, for those purposes set forth in RCW 42.30.110.  Before convening an Executive 
Session, the Presiding Officer shall announce the purpose of the Session and the anticipated 
time when the Session will be concluded. Should the Session require more time, a public 
announcement shall be made that the Session is being extended. No formal action or decision of 
the Council may be taken in Executive Session.  



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 5 of 8 

D. Emergency Meetings. If at any time there is a need for expedited action by the City Council to 
meet an emergency situation, the Mayor, or in the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor or 
any three members of Council, may call an emergency meeting at a place and time as necessary, 
and the noticing requirements of Title 42 RCW, or City ordinance or rule, may be waived.  

E. Adjournment. Regular and Special Council Meetings shall adjourn no later than 9:00 p.m. The 
adjournment times established hereunder may be extended to a later time certain upon 
approval of a motion by a majority of the Council. During regular and special meetings, any 
Councilmember may call for a “Point of Order” at 8:30 p.m. to review agenda priorities.  

F. Meeting Place. Council Meetings will be a time and place as Council directs. Regular and/or 
Special meetings shall generally be held within the boundaries of the City.  The Council will not 
take final action on items during meetings held outside the boundaries of the City. 

G. Public Notice. The City shall comply with the provisions of RCW 35A.12.160.  

SECTION 8.  COUNCIL ORDER OF BUSINESS.  

A. Order of Business for Regular Meetings. The order of business for each Regular Meeting shall be 
as follows:  

1. Call to Order  

2. Roll Call, Flag Salute  
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting  
4. Commendations/Presentations  
5. Citizens’ business 
6. Public Hearing  
7. Consent agenda and Auditing of Accounts 
8. Ordinances, Resolutions and Motions  
9. Report of City Manager  
10. Council Comments/Council Committee Reports  
11. Executive Session (as necessary)  
12. Adjournment  

 
B. Council Agenda. When necessary, the Mayor or other Councilmember, with the consent of the 

Council, may change the order of business. All ordinances or resolutions must be on the agenda 
to be voted upon; a motion to suspend the rules would be necessary in order to vote on an 
ordinance or resolution not on the agenda.  

SECTION 9.  CONDUCT OF BUSINESS  

A. Motions. Business is brought before the council by motions, which constitute a formal 
procedure for taking actions. To make a motion, a member must first be recognized by the 
presiding officer. After the member has made a motion (and after the motion is seconded if 
required) the chair must then restate it or rule it out of order, then call for discussion.  

B. Debate.  As required by Robert’s Rules of Order, a member may speak twice on each motion. 
Each time a Councilmember is recognized, the Councilmember may speak to the motion for no 
longer than five minutes. No Councilmember may speak a third time to a motion without the 
consent of the Council. 

C. Staff Input.  During regular or special meetings of the Council, the presiding officer will call for a 
staff report on business items as the agenda is considered and before a motion is entertained by 



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 6 of 8 

the presiding officer. Once a motion is pending, debate is limited to Councilmembers; additional 
staff input will be limited to providing clarification on issues if requested by a Councilmember.  

D. Reconsideration. A motion to reconsider is in order during the meeting after a motion has been 
acted upon either at the same meeting or at the next regular or special meeting of the Council. 
It must be made by a member who voted on the prevailing side, i.e., if a motion fails to pass, 
reconsideration must be moved by one who voted against the motion. It is debatable and 
requires a majority vote.  

SECTION 10.  PUBLIC TESTIMONY.  

A. Public Comment  

During Regular or Special Meetings of the Council, public comments will be invited during the 
Public Comment portion of the agenda. The public is also invited to provide written comment on 
any non-quasi-judicial or legislative matter. It is encouraged that such written comments be filed 
with the clerk by 1:00 p.m. of the Wednesday preceding the Regular Meeting. If written 
comments are given at the meeting, the presenter should provide eleven copies for the Council 
and staff.  

In addition, public oral testimony may be taken on other non-quasi-judicial or legislative matters 
as they arise during the course of the meeting agenda. However, once a motion is pending, 
debate is limited to Councilmembers and no further public comment will be taken, unless a 
Councilmember requests further testimony.  

Public comments should be limited to no more than three minutes per person. The Presiding 
Officer may, with consent of the Council, further limit individual comment length and total 
comment time allocated to a topic. 

B. Identification of Speakers. Persons testifying shall identify themselves for the record as to name, 
address and organization.  

C. Instructions for Speakers. An instruction notice and signup sheet will be provided at the 
entrance to the Council chambers. Persons testifying should address their comments to the City 
Council, not the audience.  

D.  Addressing Council Outside of a Public Hearing or Public Comments. No person shall be allowed 
to address the Council while it is in session without the recognition of the Presiding Officer.  

SECTION 11.  CONSENT AGENDA.  

A. The City Manager, in consultation with the Presiding Officer, shall place matters on the Consent 
agenda which: (a) have been previously discussed or policies set by the Council, or (b) based on 
the information delivered to members of the Council, by the administration, can be reviewed by 
a Councilmember without further explanation, or (c) are so routine or technical in nature that 
passage is likely.  

B. The motion to adopt the Consent agenda shall be non-debatable and have the effect of moving 
to adopt all items on the Consent agenda. Since adoption of any item on the Consent agenda 
implies unanimous consent, any member of the Council shall have the right to remove any item 
from the Consent agenda. If any matter is withdrawn, the Presiding Officer shall place the item 
at an appropriate place on the agenda for deliberation at the current or future Council Meeting.  



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 7 of 8 

SECTION 12. PUBLIC HEARINGS.  

The Public Hearing is a formal opportunity for citizens to give their views for consideration in the 
legislative or policy-decision-making process. In addition, public hearings are required on quasi-judicial 
actions which determine the legal rights, duties, or privileges of specific parties. The following rules shall 
be observed during public hearings:  

A.  Legislative/Information Gathering Public Hearing;  

1. Open Public Hearing - The Mayor will open the public hearing.  

2. Staff Presentation - For an initial presentation of background information from a City 
Department, a City Board, Commission, or Committee, or an organization such as the Fire 
District, the Library District, or the School District, no more than twenty (20) minutes will be 
allowed, unless otherwise authorized by the Presiding Officer.  

3. Citizen Comments - Comments will be limited to threefour minutes from individuals or from 
persons speaking as a representative of an organization, club, or group. The Presiding Officer 
may allow additional time for receipt of written testimony, when needed.  

4. Staff Comments - Additional staff comments may be requested by Council following citizen 
comments.  

5. Close Public Hearing - At the conclusion of Citizen or Staff Comments, the Presiding Officer 
will close the public hearing.  

6. Council Deliberation.  

7. Council Action.  

8. Timekeeper. The City Clerk shall be the timekeeper.  

B. Quasi-Judicial Public Hearings:  

Public oral testimony shall not be given on quasi-judicial matters outside of a public hearing 
except on matters of procedure. If a quasi-judicial hearing is on the agenda, the public will be 
informed by the City Attorney as to what state law permits as to public comments. In addition, 
quasi-judicial hearings will be conducted in conformance to procedures outlined in other City 
ordinances.  

SECTION 13. AGENDA PREPARATION.  

A. The Clerk will prepare a preliminary agenda for each Council Meeting specifying the time and 
place of the meeting and setting forth a brief general description of each item to be considered 
by the Council.  

B. An item for a Regular Council meeting may be placed on the preliminary agenda by any of the 
following methods:  

1. A majority vote of the Council;  

2. Council consensus;  

3. By any two Councilmembers, in writing or with phone confirmation, with signatures by 
fax or electronic mail allowed for confirmation of support, no later than 12:00 (noon) 
four business days prior to the meeting. The names of the requesting Councilmembers 
shall be set forth on the agenda;  



City of Kelso 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 
As amended February 5, 2013 May 28, 2014 Page 8 of 8 

4. By the City Manager;  

5. By a Council Committee; 

C. Agenda items that are continued from one meeting to another will have preference on the 
agenda to the extent possible.  

SECTION 14. EFFECT/WAIVER OF RULES.  

It is the intent of the City Council that council procedures be periodically reviewed as needed, but no 
less than every two years. Accordingly, Council procedures shall be considered in the month of January 
of every even-numbered year, and may be considered at any other time that Council shall choose to 
review them.  

These rules of procedure are adopted for the sole benefit of the members of the City Council to assist in 
the orderly conduct of Council business. These rules of procedure do not grant rights or privileges to 
members of the public or third parties. Failure of the City Council to adhere to these rules shall not 
result in any liability to the City, its officers, agents, and employees, nor shall failure to adhere to these 
rules result in invalidation of any Council act. The City Council may, by a two-thirds vote of those 
members present and voting, determine to temporarily waive any of the provisions herein. A two-thirds 
vote is five of seven votes, four of six votes, four of five votes, and three of four votes.  


	1. - 2014-07-15
	1.1. - 2014-07-01
	2.1. - Ag Sum - FCS Rate Study presentation 07152014
	3.1. - AgSu - 2014 CHAP-N. Kelso Ave Wtr Bid Award 7.15.14
	5.1. - AgSu Aldercrest
	5.2. - Ag Sum Hotel&Sports Complex Feasibility Studies
	5.2.1. - Longview Hotel-Sports complex feasibility
	5.3. - Ag Sum - GTHGA Lobbying Services PSA 07152014
	5.3.1. - GTHGA Lobbying PSA 07152014
	1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described below:

	5.3.2. - Kelso_RFP_Lobbying_Services_05292014
	5.3.3. - GTH RFP
	6.1. - Ag Sum - Ordinance amending zoning for low barrier 2nd reading 07152014....
	6.1.1. - Ord ER Housing & Low Barrier Zones
	6.1.2. - 05-13-2014 PC Mins Pub Hear Low Barrier
	6.1.3. - 06-10-2014 PC Mins  Low Barrier
	6.2. - AgSu  Rules of Procedure
	6.2.1. - Res Rules of Proc
	6.2.1.1. - Amended Council Rules 2014 05282014 (2)

